<u>CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA</u>

MINUTES OF THE CABINET

HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM 5, GUILDHALL, SWANSEA ON THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2016 AT 4.00 PM

PRESENT: Councillor R C Stewart (Leader of the Council) Presided

Councillor(s)Councillor(s)Councillor(s)M C ChildW EvansR Francis-DaviesD H HopkinsA S LewisC E Llovd

J A Raynor

Also Present: Councillor F M Gordon(Minute No.197)

191. **APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.**

An apology for absence was received from Councillor C Richards.

192. DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea, the following interests were declared:

Councillor D H Hopkins – Minute No.203 - Building Capital Maintenance Programme 2016/17 – Personal as LA Governor.

Councillor C E Lloyd – Minute No.203 - Building Capital Maintenance Programme 2016/17 – Personal as LA Governor.

193. **MINUTES.**

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting(s) listed below be approved as a correct record:

- 1) Special Cabinet held on 15 February 2016.
- 2) Cabinet held on 18 February 2016.
- 3) Special Cabinet held on 3 March 2016.

194. LEADER OF THE COUNCIL'S REPORT(S).

The Leader of the Council made no announcements.

195. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME.

No questions were asked.

196. **COUNCILLORS' QUESTION TIME.**

No questions were asked.

197. SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO SCHOOL GOVERNANCE.

Councillor F M Gordon, Panel Convenor of the School Governance Scrutiny Inquiry Panel, presented the report which outlined the findings, conclusions and recommendations resulting from the Panel's Inquiry into School Governance.

RESOLVED that

- 1) the report be noted.
- 2) the Cabinet Member for Education present a written response to the Scrutiny recommendations and proposed actions to Cabinet in June 2016.

198. LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS.

The Cabinet Member for Education presented a report which sought approval of the nominations submitted to fill Local Authority (LA) Governor vacancies on School Governing Bodies.

RESOLVED that:

1) The following nominations be approved as recommended by the LA Governor Appointments Panel:

1. Bishopston Primary School	Miss Emma Squires
2. Craigfelen Primary School	Mrs Gregg Jones
3.Glyncollen Primary School	Mrs Carole Wright
4. St Illtyd's Primary School	Mr Peter John Richards
5. YGG Tan y Lan	Mrs Charlotte Aull Davies
6. Bishopston Comprehensive School	Mrs Joanna Meller

199. <u>ESTYN INSPECTION OF LOCAL AUTHORITY EDUCATION SERVICES FOR</u> CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 2013 – UPDATE.

The Cabinet Member for Education presented a report which provided an update on the progress in meeting the five recommendations in the Estyn Inspection Report from 2013.

RESOLVED that the progress update on the five recommendations in the Estyn Inspection Report be noted.

Minutes of the Cabinet (17.03.2016) Cont'd

200. QUARTER 3 2015/16 PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT.

The Cabinet Member for Transformation & Performance presented a report which sought to report Corporate and Service Performance for Quarter 3 of 2015-2016.

RESOLVED that Performance be reviewed to help inform executive decisions on resource allocation and, where relevant, corrective actions to manage and improve performance and efficiency in delivering national and local priorities.

201. SHOW BULLYING THE RED LIGHT.

The Cabinet Member for Transformation & Performance presented a report which outlined and sought endorsement for the new 'Show Bullying the Red Light' campaign.

The Chief Executive outlined his and Executive Boards full support for the initiative.

RESOLVED that

- 1) Cabinet endorsed the 'Show Bullying the Red Light' campaign.
- 2) Cabinet agreed to actively support the campaign as detailed in the report.

202. STRATEGIC EQUALITY PLAN 2016 - 2020

The Cabinet Member for Transformation & Performance presented a report which outlined the Strategic Equality Plan.

RESOLVED that the Strategic Equality Plan be referred to Council for approval.

203. BUILDING CAPITAL MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 2016/17.

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Strategy presented a report which outlined the schemes to be funded through the Capital Maintenance Programme.

RESOLVED that Cabinet

- 1)approved the proposed capital maintenance schemes as listed in Appendix A of the report.
- 2) authorised the financial implications identified in Appendix B of the report to be included in the capital programme.

Minutes of the Cabinet (17.03.2016) Cont'd

204. **CORPORATE PLAN 2016 - 2017.**

The Leader presented a report which sought agreement of the Corporate Plan "Delivering for Swansea 2016-2017".

RESOLVED that the Corporate Plan Delivering for Swansea 2016 -2017 be approved.

205. FPR7 - CITY CENTRE REGENERATION MATCH FUNDING BUDGET.

The Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Development and Regeneration presented a report which sought to include the budget within the Capital Programme.

RESOLVED that the budget to the Capital Programme for 2015/16 & 2016/17 be agreed and committed.

206. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC.**

Cabinet were requested to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the item(s) of business identified in the recommendations to the report(s) on the grounds that it / they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as set out in the exclusion paragraph of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007 relevant to the items of business set out in the report(s).

Cabinet considered the Public Interest Test in deciding whether to exclude the public from the meeting for the item of business where the Public Interest Test was relevant as set out in the report.

RESOLVED that the public be excluded for the following item(s) of business.

CLOSED SESSION

207. <u>LEASE RENEWAL OF THE PETROL FILLING STATION AT MUMBLES ROAD,</u> BLACKPILL.

The Cabinet Member for Finance & Strategy submitted a report which sought approval for the renewal of the lease at the filling station.

RESOLVED that the recommendation as set out in the report be approved.

208. OPTIONS FOR THE FUTURE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF SWANSEA AIRPORT.

The Cabinet Member for Finance & Strategy submitted a report which sought approval for the renewal of the lease at the airport.

RESOLVED that the recommendation as set out in the report be approved.

Minutes of the Cabinet (17.03.2016) Cont'd

209. URGENT ITEM.

The Leader of the Council stated that pursuant to paragraph 100B (4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972, he considered that the report of the Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Development and Regeneration "Development of City Centre Sites – St David's Area North & South of Oystermouth Road" should be considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency.

Reason for Urgency

To seek Cabinet agreement to extend the Councils existing financial commitment to work up costs for St David's in the short term until discussions with Welsh Government can be finalised.

210. <u>DEVELOPMENT OF CITY CENTRE SITES - ST DAVID'S AREA NORTH & SOUTH</u> OF OYSTERMOUTH ROAD

The Leader presented a report which would allow City Centre regeneration to be progressed, pending a decision on funding from Welsh Government.

The Section 151 Officer indicated that a letter from Welsh Government had been received today confirming support for the funding of the scheme, but further discussions would be required with Ministers both before and after the Welsh Government Elections in May on issues relating to the monies.

RESOLVED that the recommendations as set out in the report be approved.

The meeting ended at 4.55 pm

CHAIR

Published on 21 March 2016.